
 
 

 

 
 
AGENDA 

 
 REGULAR ZOOM VIDEOCONFERENCE    November 4, 2021 

 
6:00 P.M. -  Call to Order – Gil Allen 
 
Board Members:  Gil Allen, Shawn Jester, and Kevin Utz. 
 
 MINUTES – October 12, 2021. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
Case #SA-21-1095 Amadeus De Sousa – 3 ft. Side Yard Setback Variance to 

Construct a 14 ft. x 24 ft. Accessory Structure – 128 
Holland Avenue - R-8 Residential District. 

* * * * * 
Topic: Board of Zoning Appeals 
Time: Nov 4, 2021 06:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82030222536?pwd=Vk5CRWlsL3E3THB2UmozVmhVRUNkZz09 
 
Meeting ID: 820 3022 2536 
Passcode: 133339 
One tap mobile 
+13017158592,,82030222536# US (Washington DC) 
+13126266799,,82030222536# US (Chicago) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
Meeting ID: 820 3022 2536 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSUffEXFl 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82030222536?pwd=Vk5CRWlsL3E3THB2UmozVmhVRUNkZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSUffEXFl


 

 

 

MINUTES 
 

The Salisbury Board of Zoning Appeals met in regular session on 
October 12, 2021, in Room 301, Government Office Building at 6:00 p.m. with attendance 
as follows: 
 
BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
Albert G. Allen, III, Chairman  
Shawn Jester  
Kevin Utz 
 
CITY STAFF: 
 
Henry Eure, Project Manager 
Brian Soper, City Planner 
Beverly Tull, Recording Secretary 
Laura Hay, City Solicitor 
Heather Konyar, City Solicitor 

 
* * * * *  
 

Mr. Allen, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. 
 

* * * * *  
 

MINUTES: 
 

Upon a motion by Mr. Jester, seconded by Mr. Allen, and duly 
carried, the Board APPROVED the September 2, 2021 minutes as submitted.   

 
* * * * *  
 

Mr. Allen explained the public hearing procedure.  He requested Mr. 
Eure to administer the oath to anyone wishing to speak before the case heard by the 
Salisbury Board of Zoning Appeals.  Mr. Eure administered the oath. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 

* * * * *  
 
Case # SA-21-879 Hammerhead Renovations, on behalf of Larry & Joyce Gilmore – 7 ft. 

Rear Yard Setback Variance to Construct a 14 ft. x 24 ft. Four-Season 
Sunroom Addition – 137 Village Oak Drive – R-5A Residential District. 

Mr. Richard Cropper, Mrs. Kimberly Cropper, Mr. Larry Gilmore, Jr. 
and Mrs. Jamie Gilmore came forward.  Mr. Henry Eure presented and entered the Staff 
report and all accompanying documentation into the record.  He summarized the report 
explaining that the applicant requested permission to construct a 14 ft. x 24 ft. four-season 
sunroom addition.  Board approval of a 7 ft. rear yard setback variance is requested. 

Mr. Cropper explained that the relief requested was to provide the 
same benefit that other residents in the neighborhood have.  He added that 36% of the 
homes in the neighborhood have sunrooms and submitted Applicant’s Exhibit #1 as 
pictures of other sunrooms in the neighborhood. 

Mr. Allen questioned if the other sunrooms in the neighborhood were 
similar to what is being proposed.  Mr. Cropper responded in the affirmative.  Mr. Allen 
questioned if the lot sizes were the same as this lot.  Mrs. Cropper responded that the lot 
sizes are not available to the public on the Assessment website.   

Mr. Cropper stated that they were allowed to build the screened 
porch so they are just asking to enclose it. 

Mr. Jester questioned the reason for wanting the sunroom.  Mrs. 
Gilmore responded that the sunroom would be used for living space as a family room.  
The addition will be attractive and will be the exact dimension as the deck that was on 
the property.  Mr. Gilmore added that the sunroom will match what is existing and has 
the approval of the Homeowners Association.  Mr. Jester questioned if the Homeowners 
Association was on board with the addition.  Mrs. Gilmore responded in the affirmative.  
Mr. Gilmore added that they had submitted the drawing to the Homeowners Association 
and made sure it was identical in size to the deck.  Mr. Cropper added that the deck was 
unsafe and not up to code. 

Mr. Allen questioned Mr. Eure if the lot was the same size as the other 
lots in the neighborhood.  Mr. Eure responded that this lot is narrower than the other lots 
in the neighborhood.  Mr. Allen questioned if the other lots were deeper.  Mr. Eure 
responded in the negative, adding that other permits have been issued for sunrooms.  
Mr. Allen questioned if any of the other lots were small.  Mr. Eure responded in the 
negative.  Mr. Cropper submitted Applicant’s Exhibit #2 as photographs of similar sized 



 

 

 

lots in the neighborhood.  Mr. Utz requested the location of these lots and Mr. Cropper 
approached the table to the show the location on the map in the Staff Report.    

Mrs. Gilmore added that the adjoining home has a sunroom. 

Mr. Allen explained that the only way to approve the variance was 
to determine a hardship with the lot.  The Board is tasked with finding uniqueness to grant 
the variance.  He requested the applicants speak to anything regarding the property 
that would make it unique. 

Mr. Cropper discussed the size and configuration of the lot.  Mrs. 
Cropper added that some of the lots in the neighborhood are wider than others.  Mr. 
Allen noted that the common area is not as wide in some areas of the neighborhood.   

Mr. Jester stated that the open space was unique but the City’s 
opinion is that the open space is not a hardship.  Mr. Eure responded that most lots have 
open space adjoining them. 

Mr. Gilmore noted that they would not be encroaching the open 
space. 

Mr. Utz stated that the unique factor is the common open space 
area.  

Mr. Gilmore noted that they have a smaller lot but one of the larger 
backyards in the neighborhood. 

Mr. Jester questioned Mr. Eure if the Villages at Tony Tank was 
constructed under the current Code.  Mr. Eure responded in the affirmative.   

Mr. Allen explained that if the Board grants this variance that a 
precedent is set for the neighborhood.  Mrs. Cropper stated that almost every home has 
a deck, sunroom, porch or pergola.  Mr. Allen reiterated that a precedent would be a 
long-term concern. 

Mr. Jester questioned if a 7 ft. variance was the smallest variance 
that could be requested.  Mrs. Cropper responded that the foundation was already 
complete. 

Mr. Allen questioned Mr. Eure on why a porch was allowed but not 
a sunroom.  Mr. Eure responded that the Zoning Code allows it and it was written in 1983.  
A screened porch has a 20 ft. setback and a sunroom has a 30 ft. setback. 

Mrs. Carolyn Collins, Homeowners Association President, stated that 
the Homeowners Association had reviewed the request and approved it as long as it 



 

 

 

remained on their property, matched the size of the existing deck, and matched the 
colors on the house.  She added that there have not been any complaints received from 
the neighborhood. 

Upon a motion by Mr. Jester, seconded by Mr. Utz, and duly carried 
the Board APPROVED the requested 7 ft. rear yard setback variance based on the small 
size of the lot, the adjacent common area and the surroundings of the neighborhood. 

Mr. Allen opposed the motion. 

 

* * * * * 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
* * * * *  

 
This is a summary of the proceedings of this meeting.  Detailed 

information is in the permanent files of each case as presented and filed in the City of 
Salisbury Department of Infrastructure and Development Department. 
 
 

_______________________________  
Albert G. Allen, III, Chairman 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Amanda Pollack, Secretary to the Board 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Beverly R. Tull, Recording Secretary 
























	Agenda
	AGENDA
	REGULAR ZOOM VIDEOCONFERENCE    November 4, 2021


	October 12, 2021 NOT APPROVED SBZA minutes
	MINUTES
	BOARD MEMBERS:
	CITY STAFF:

	ADJOURNMENT

	128 Holland Ave Staff Report

